
MEETING: Children and Young People's Trust 
Executive Group Meeting

DATE: Thursday, 4 August 2016
TIME: 9.00 am
VENUE: Westgate, Level 3, Room 3

AGENDA

1.  Apologies   09:00

2.  Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflict of interest  
(Verbal Report) 

3.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting Held on 17 June 2016  (Pages 5 - 14) 
For accuracy

3.1  Matters Arising/Action Log  (Pages 15 - 16)

Action Focussed Discussion

4.  Parenting ( family support/child poverty)  (Pages 17 - 22) 09:10
A 15 minute presentation by Andrea Hoyland followed by discussion 

Children and Young People's Plan

5.  Early Help  (Verbal Report) 09:50
(Nina Sleight ) 

6.  Performance highlights and risks against CYP Plan priorities  (Verbal Report) 
10:05
(Strategic priority leads)

For Discussion

7.  Healthy Weight/ Childhood Obesity  (Pages 23 - 26) 10:10
(Rebecca Clarke)

8.  Sport and Active Lifestyle Action Plan 2016 - 2018  (Pages 27 - 34) 10:25
(Place/ Public Health, Julie Tolhurst)

9.  Early Support Pathway for Children with Additional Complex Needs   10:40
(John Rooke and Anita Mc Crum)   Presentation

10.  Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) referral pathways in 
Barnsley  (Pages 35 - 50) 10:55
(Kadra Abdinasir, The Children Society Policy Officer)

Updates on Progress

11.  Progress on the process for monitoring the outcomes of the Children and Young 
People's Plan  (Pages 51 - 58) 11:30
(Julie Green)

Public Document Pack



Standard Agenda Items

12.  Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board - highlights of the meeting held on 29 July 
2016  (Verbal Report) 11:35
(Bob Dyson)

13.  Continuous Service Improvement Framework  (To Follow) 11:45
(Mel John-Ross/ Julie Govan) CONFIDENTIAL (see Supplementary Agenda)
Reason restricted: 
Paragraph (2) Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

14.  TEG Work Programme Review  (Pages 59 - 60) 11:50
(Richard Lynch)

Proposed agenda items

15.  Joint TEG/BSCB Meeting  (Pages 61 - 62) 11:55
18 November 2016: 9.30 – 12.30
Draft programme for consideration

16.  TEG Meeting: 6 October 2016 - suggested items   12:00
6 October 2016, 9.30 – 12.30

Children and Young People’s Plan:
 Improving education, achievement and employability: Sub-group report and 

performance highlights (Margaret Libreri)
 Disabled Children’s Charter six monthly progress report 

(Mel John-Ross)
 Impact of non-attendance of school – case study on the impact and the 

services involved (Keren Harben)
 CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes performance highlights and risks – issues 

for escalation (Priority theme leads)

Public Health Strategic Priorities to support children, young people and families to 
make healthy lifestyle choices: 
 Strategic Priority 1 – smoking in young people 

(Diane Lee/ Kaye Mann)
 Strategic Priority 2 – Oral Health (Anita Dobson)
 Reducing Teenage Pregnancy (Diane Lee/ Emma Pye)

Action Focused Discussion:
 Barnsley Alliance Board Report and Action Plan (Margaret Libreri)

For Discussion:
 Stronger Communities Partnership Action Plan (Wendy Lowder)

Standing agenda items:
 Children’s Workforce Development – update on progress 

(Amanda Glew)
 TEG Terms of Reference/ Partnership Agreement Revision – annual review 

(Richard Lynch)
 TEG work programme review (Richard Lynch)



 Continuous Service Improvement Framework – update on progress (Julie 
Govan)

 Barnsley Safeguarding Children’s Board Minutes/ highlights of the last meeting 
(Bob Dyson)

Updates:
 Think Family (Paul Hussey/ Margaret Libreri)
 Troubled Families (Andrea Hoyland/ Jayne Hellowell)



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Present 
 
Core Members 
Rachel Dickinson (Chair) BMBC, Executive Director: People   
Bob Dyson Independent Chair of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
Margaret Libreri BMBC, Service Director for Education, Early Start and Prevention 
Mel John-Ross  BMBC, Service Director of Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding 
Gerry Foster-Wilson  Executive Headteacher, Representing the Barnsley Association of 

 Headteachers of Primary, Special and Nursery Schools 
Sean Rayner SWYPFT District Director Barnsley/ Wakefield  
Cllr Margaret Bruff Cabinet Member: People (Safeguarding) 
Sue Gibson Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Head of Midwifery/ Nursing  
Dr Clare Bannon GP representing Barnsley Local Medical Committee 
Julia Burrows BMBC, Director of Public Health  
Jenny Miccoli Barnsley College, Vice Principal Teaching, Learning & Student 

Support 
Jayne Hellowell BMBC, Head of Locality Commissioning and Healthier Communities 
 
Deputy Members 

Ann O’Flynn BMBC Service Director for Customer Services, Communities 
Directorate (for Wendy Lowder) 

Martine Tune Barnsley CCG, Deputy Chief Nurse (for Brigid Reid) 
Patrick Otway Barnsley CCG, Head of Commissioning (Mental Health, Children’s 

and Specialised Services) (for Brigid Reid) 
Christine Drabble Voluntary Action Barnsley, CEO Corporate Services  
 (for Nigel Middlehurst) 

Advisers 

Richard Lynch BMBC, Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships 
Julie Green  BMBC, Strategic Lead, Procurement and Partnerships Manager 
Anna Turner  BMBC, School Models and Governor Development Manager 
 
In attendance 

Rebecca Clark  BMBC Public Health Specialist Practitioner (for item 7.2 and 7.3) 
Kay Bennett  BMBC Infant Feeding Strategy Coordinator (for item 7.1) 
Caroline Berry BMBC Research and Business Intelligence Advisor (for item 7.3) 
Carol Stringer  BMBC, Contracts and Relationships Officer 
Denise Brown BMBC, Governance, Partnerships and Projects Officer 
 
  Action 
1. Apologies: 

Brigid Reid Barnsley CCG, Chief Nurse 
Wendy Lowder BMBC, Service Director for Stronger, Safer and 

Healthier Communities 
Amanda Glew BMBC Organisation Development Manager 
Tim Cheetham  Cabinet Member: People (Achieving Potential) 
Nigel Middlehurst Voluntary Action Barnsley, External Services Manager 

 

 
Minutes of the Children and Young People’s Trust Executive 

Group Meeting held on 17 June 2016  

Page 5

Item 3



  Action 
Dave Whitaker Executive Headteacher, Representative of Secondary 

Headteachers 
Angela Kelly BMBC, Targeted Youth Support Operations Manager 
Diane Lee  BMBC, Head of Public Health 
Tim Innes South Yorkshire Police Chief Superintendent (Barnsley 

Commander) 
Julie Govan BMBC Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding, 

Improvement Programme Manager  
 

2. Identification of confidential reports 

It was noted that the reports for items 5; 6; 7.4; 9 & 10 were of a confidential 
nature. There were no conflicts of interest declared.  
 
Rachel shared her experience of a recent visit with a Social Worker and a 
Learning Disability Nurse who were doing some fantastic work with a family. 
It was clear that earlier intervention would have made a big difference to the 
young people and the family involved. Rachel stressed the importance of 
constantly reminding ourselves to the importance of working together to 
effectively support children as early in their lives as possible.   
 
Jenny suggested that a few moments are spent at the start of each meeting 
to share similar experiences from the front line.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. TEG Minutes of 29 April 2016 

Carol was thanked for preparing the minutes of the last meeting. The 
minutes were approved as an accurate record of the meeting subject to 
including Margaret Libreri’s name under ‘apologies’.   
 

 
 

Denise 

3.1 Action log 

Rachel stated that Jonathan and Tracey had appreciated the welcome they 
had received at the last TEG meeting and felt that it had been worthwhile for 
them to attend. Rachel stated that she had invited Jonathan to have input 
into the Health and Wellbeing Board as well. 
 
The action log was updated as follows: 

Actions outstanding from previous meetings: 

4.1 – The briefing by Ray Powell had been circulated. Action completed. 
5.1 – Still births in Barnsley. Rachel had followed up the action for 
Communities Directorate and developing Family Centres to be made aware 
of the risk factors during pregnancy, including smoking.  Wendy Lowder had 
confirmed that feedback had been received. Action completed. 
  
Actions outstanding from 17 March 2016: 

4 – Detail on Child Health Programme Board work streams had been 
provided to TEG members. Action completed. 
9 – Impetus on cultural change for improving staff skills to deliver quality 
services to be considered. Rachel requested an update from Paul Hussey 
and Ann undertook to follow up this action. 
 
Actions from 29 April 2016: 

4.1 – Barnsley’s Parent and Carer’s Forum. Confidence and effectiveness of 
the workforce need to be increased, particularly in relation to personalised 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ann 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



  Action 
budgets. Amanda to take forward the issues in terms of the Workforce 
Development Strategy.  
4.2 – The Barnsley Alliance Board would be meeting at the end of June 
when Margaret would inform them of the work of the Barnsley Parent and 
Carers Forum. Action outstanding. 
5.1 – SEND Strategy. Action outstanding for Colette and Margaret to work 
with Jonathan and Tracey to emphasise the importance of including the 
child’s voice and to ensure that family support is strengthened. 
5.2 – Action outstanding for Colette to meet with Brigid. It is understood that 
work is taking place with Karen O’Brien. 
5.3 – No further comments or amendments had been received.  
5.4 – Equipping the workforce to capture the wishes and feelings of a non-
verbal child is being included in the Workforce Development Strategy.  
5.5 – The TEG work programme had been updated to include an invitation to 
the Parent and Carers Forum to attend a meeting in a year’s time to discuss 
progress. 
6 – Early Help update on progress is on the TEG agenda for 4 August 2016.  
7 - Rachel to write to the Barnsley Alliance Board to ask them to commission 
a piece of work around school exclusions for a future CYP Trust meeting. 
8 – Richard proposed that an annual report of activity be developed for the 
Trust, including the work of the Executive Commissioning Group. The report 
would be structured in line with the Children and Young People’s Plan.  A 
report would be brought to a future meeting following approval of the format 
of the performance report. Rachel commented that this would be a useful 
driver and a form of accounting of the difference that has been made as a 
partnership. It was agreed that the proposed report would be prepared for 
the next meeting.  
9 – Future in Mind.  A successful stakeholder event had been held. Gerry 
and Jenny confirmed that they had found it to be very positive. Two more 
events are being arranged, the next one being in September. Patrick stated 
that stakeholders had agreed to fund existing priorities for 2016. A lot of work 
is taking place to train teaching staff, and training for children themselves is 
also being considered. Patrick to escalate any barriers to the Trust.  
10 – Continuous Service Improvement Plan and the implementation of 
MASH is on track.  
13.1 – The TEG work programme review was completed.  
13.2 – Rachel requested that the action to consider holding a reflective 
workshop be carried over. Need to consider the right time to hold a workshop 
to determine whether or not priorities are focussed accordingly and to re-
prioritise depending upon urgent changes.  
13.3 – An update on ‘Think Family’ is on the work programme for 6 October 
2016 for Paul Hussey and Margaret Libreri.  
 

Amanda 
 
 

Margaret 
 

Colette/ 
Margaret 

 
Colette 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rachel 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richard 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rachel/ 
Richard 

 
 

Paul/ 
Margaret 

4. Performance: escalated items: 

No performance issues were escalated. 
 

 

5. 

5.1 

Child Health Programme Board Work streams 

Breastfeeding (Kay Bennett) 

The report provided an update on the present position of breastfeeding, 
giving both the national and local picture for 2015-16, demonstrating future 
challenges. The following points were highlighted: 
• The Breastfeeding and Infant Feeding Steering Group used to report into 

the Child Health Programme Board which no longer meets.  
• The group needs a broader range of representatives at decision making 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



  Action 
level to strengthen its effectiveness.  

• Breastfeeding and infant feeding needs to be incorporated into other 
strategies, including healthy weight and healthy lifestyle choices such as 
stop smoking.  

• The ‘Baby friendly’ initiative is due to be accredited in three years. 
Accreditation needs to be continually maintained and audits are 
relentless. The Hospital and Children’s Community Services are fully 
accredited, and it is hoped that the Neonatal Centre will become 
accredited in its own right. It is quite an expensive programme but is 
worth the cost benefits of future savings. It is important to have good 
champions to support breastfeeding and to advocate for it.  

• There is a concern that the data received is not accurate. The data shows 
that there are about 30 mums breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks, but Kay 
acknowledges that there may be a lot of women still breastfeeding that 
are not known to the service.  

• Data is collected by Health Visitors and submitted to Public Health 
England.  Sue stated that problems had been experienced with a new 
data system and that this was currently being resolved.    

• Breastfeeding initiation rates have been going up over the last few years, 
but young women are not continuing to breastfeed. 64% of mothers start 
breast feeding and 28% are still breast feeding by the time the child is 6-8 
weeks. It is important to focus efforts to encourage young women to 
continue to breastfeed at that stage.  

• The Lactation Consultant has left, and specialist breastfeeding support 
needs to be developed. 

• The plea is for partners to ensure that their respective organisations and 
services are welcoming to women who wish to breast feed, and for 
schools and further education institutions to support young women who 
choose to return to education. Guidance also needs to be developed for 
young women who are breastfeeding.  

• It was acknowledged that a cultural change is needed, which takes a long 
time to achieve.  

• Julia stated that a research project was undertaken in Sheffield giving 
shopping vouchers to young women who were breastfeeding. Not 
everyone may agree with this approach, but it does seem to be effective 
and may start to change the culture.  

• Factors that influence breastfeeding include: experiencing pain when 
breastfeeding; night feeds; worklessness; feeding in public places and 
poor body image; peer pressure; pressure from boys to not breast feed; 
young women wanting to get their figures back.  

• ‘Having a baby’ programme provides one to one support which is very 
effective. It was acknowledged that peer support is most effective. 

• The excellent work of Kay and the breastfeeding team was 
acknowledged. 

• Anna suggested sharing positive case studies to encourage young 
women to continue to breast feed.  

• Ann O’Flynn suggested that breast feeding be promoted through the 
Registrar’s Service when the birth is registered. Kay requested that 
parents also be signposted to the Service’s Facebook page. 

• Susan is happy to support the Neonatal Unit becoming ‘baby friendly’ 
accredited.   

• Jenny suggested educating young men. Kay stated that the service 
would welcome working with Barnsley College.  

 
The Trust Executive Group agreed to the recommendations in the report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



  Action 
Kay undertook to contact colleagues to invite them onto the Breastfeeding 
and Infant Feeding Steering Group, and it was agreed that any difficulties in 
recruiting the right people, or resolving the issues around data, would be 
flagged up to the TEG.    
 

Kay 
 
 
 
 

5.2 Teenage conception (Rebecca Clark) 

Rebecca presented slides prepared by Megan Ward who had been unable to 
attend. 
 
The following comments were noted: 
• The latest data available for under-16 abortion rates is from 2014. It 

would be helpful to have more up-to-date data, and to look at local data 
sources. Sue asked Rebecca to let her know what data was needed.  

• It would be interesting to know the number of planned pregnancies. It is 
important to raise the aspirations of young people and to break 
generational cycles and cultural ‘norms’. 

• It was noted (slide 11) that RSE is achieving access in all but one school 
in Barnsley, and it would be useful to know what impact this has.  

• Since the demise of the Youth Service it would be helpful to know what 
education is offered by voluntary sector organisations. 

• Rachel suggested that a steering group be formed to track the impact 
and challenges from different parts of the system to make sure the issue 
of teenage conception prevention is being considered by partner 
agencies. It was agreed that Public Health would coordinate the group to 
consider how this work could be integrated.  

• There had been good feedback as a result of Spectrum working in 
Horizon School.  

• It was agreed that an update would be submitted to a future meeting.  
• Richard pointed out that consideration be given to monitoring the 

Children and Young People Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rebecca 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Public 
Health  

 
 

Work 
Programme 

 
 

5.3 Young People Health and Wellbeing data presentation (Caroline Berry) 

After the presentation, the following comments were noted: 
• It would be helpful to know whether excessive use of alcohol is changing.  
• The WAY Survey shows that more girls are involved in risk taking 

behaviour, which in turn may be resulting in increased teenage 
conceptions. 

• Some of the issues are enduring and have been spoken about for years. 
Need to continue the work through Public Health and through schools to 
enforce the messages about stop smoking, having a good diet and 
responsible drinking habits. The number of young people smoking has 
gone down, but the issues of alcohol abuse and obesity still need to be 
prioritised.  

• Need to consider how well the frontline workforce understand the health 
risks to key lifestyle outcomes, and how effectively young people most at 
risk are able to be identified.   

• It was noted that the ‘Be Well Barnsley’ website is still under construction.  
• It was agreed that Rachel and Julia would consider how TEG partners 

could support the work of the Child Health Programme Board to add 
value to this work.  

(Kay, Rebecca and Caroline left the meeting and Mel John-Ross arrived at this point.) 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rachel/ 
Julia 

 
 

Page 9



  Action 
5.4 0-19 Healthy Child Programme progress update (Julia Burrows) 

The paper provided an update on the transition of the 0-19 Healthy Child 
Programme for School Nursing and Health Visiting Services, which will be 
delivered by the Council from 1 October 2016. A Transition Board has been 
established along with Transition Steering Groups and a number of sub-
groups to drive this work.  
 
Clare stated that GPs had expressed concern regarding the impact on their 
workloads, having to complete lengthy referral forms for the School Nursing 
Service. SWYPFT to follow this up. It was noted that Julia is scheduled to 
attend the Local Medical Committee meeting in July.  
 
A multi-agency event, focusing on maximising the frontline workforce, is 
being planned for October with stakeholders. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SWYPFT 
 
 
 
 

6. Contacts into social care and the front door (Mel John-Ross) 

Mel provided an update following the report that was presented to TEG in 
February, highlighting the following points: 
• On average, 1100 contacts had been received into social care each 

month. The high conversion rate to assessment resulted in a lot of 
families having to undergo intrusive assessments, many which resulted in 
no further action. The number of contacts into social care has also 
affected assessment timeliness, and it was acknowledged that resources 
would have been more effectively targeted on those children needing to 
be safeguarded. 

• During February, TEG and BSCB endorsed a proposed change to the 
way contacts are recorded and screened, and an ‘operational guide for 
screening staff’ has been implemented. 

• Children Social Care staff are not recording contacts that don’t meet the 
threshold for statutory services, and the number of contacts into social 
care have reduced.   

• Children Social Care and early intervention need to work together and 
have the right conversations about families to ensure that resources are 
most effectively targeted.  

 
The following comments were noted: 
• There is a risk that a safeguarding concern may be missed if all contacts 

are not being recorded, and it is therefore essential that the right referrals 
are being processed. Mel confirmed that this is a valid concern that had 
been raised previously, and there has been agreement to invite agencies 
to the CSC Screening Meeting to discuss these concerns.  

• It is important to ensure that all partners have systems in place to support 
staff with safeguarding concerns that don’t meet the threshold of social 
care. Organisations need to ensure that referrals into social care are 
appropriate and that staff use the escalation process if they don’t get the 
right response. Further, that ownership is taken of the safeguarding 
concern and followed through for the sake of the child.  

• A significant number of referrals come from schools and it is important 
that designated safeguarding leads are well supported.  

• Mel to check with Nigel Leeder that quarterly meetings have been set up 
with the Schools Safeguarding Leads and that dates are circulated.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mel 

Page 10



  Action 
The Trust Executive Group agreed to note the report and members were 
encouraged to keep the conversations going in their respective 
organisations.  
 

7. Keeping children and young people safe 
(Bob Dyson and Mel John-Ross) 
 
The report provided an overview of current performance data in relation to 
this TEG priority, and the following points were highlighted: 
• The BSCB is concerned about the low number of early help assessments 

being completed.  Despite there being fewer assessments, the timeliness 
of assessments continues to be a concern, taking 45 days and more to 
complete. Work is taking place to address this.  

• It is pleasing to note that there were no S47 assessments awaiting 
allocation.  Also that the backlog of S17s had been cleared.  

• Child Sexual Exploitation remains a priority for the BSCB.  A dedicated 
sub-group monitors the recently refreshed strategy and action plan. 
Three cases of CSE were recorded by the Police.  It appears that 
Barnsley does not have the gang related incidents found in other places. 

• There are a lot of young people who go missing at times and some of 
those are repeat offenders, particularly looked after children.  

• The Board is doing further work to understand an increase in violent 
crime where the victim is under 18 years of age.  

• The Board provides high quality training courses, and is trying to 
determine what impact that has on outcomes. 

• A campaign to raise awareness of various safeguarding issues will be 
taking place the week of 4 July.  

• It was noted that there had been an article in the Barnsley Chronicle to 
raise awareness of FGM. 

• Barnsley has more children on child protection plans than statistical 
neighbours, and there needs to be a discussion regarding the added 
value and protection that a CPP has as opposed to a Child in Need form. 
Bob added that improvements in Early Help Assessments should reduce 
the need for CPPs.  

 
The Trust Executive Group agreed to note the report and the issues raised.  
 

 

8. Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) (Julia Burrows) 

The paper provided an update on the development of the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan. 
 
The following points were highlighted: 
• Every health and care system in England will be producing a STP 

showing how local services will evolve and become sustainable over the 
next five years, with a view to providing better patient care and improve 
NHS efficiency. The process has been very NHS focused.  

• A lot of discussion has taken place about re-designing the secondary 
care system.  

• Lesley Smith is the CCG leader for South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 
‘footprint’. 

• There are some challenging discussions to be had regarding local 
services and how this fits in with the bigger tertiary centre in Sheffield.  

• Alongside the STP is the development of the Barnsley Integrated Place 
Based Plan. These will be important to accessing transformational 

 

Page 11



  Action 
funding to make a real difference to health inequalities and outcomes in 
Barnsley.  

• Timescales are challenging with a submission date of 30 June.  
 
Discussions have been held to consider the advantages to the system; the 
priorities for Barnsley; and what could be done differently.  
 
Priorities include: life expectancy; smoking; changing relationship with 
communities and individuals; mental health; changing the way we work 
together. Need to consider a small number of things that will make a 
difference. 
 
Christine stated that Voluntary Action is working in partnership with 
counterparts in Sheffield, Rotherham and Bassetlaw, and regular meetings 
are being held regarding this work.  
 
It is important that TEG members are kept informed of progress. 
 

9. BSCB meeting 13 May 2016 (Bob Dyson) 

The minutes of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board meeting held on 
13 May had been circulated for information.  
 
Bob stated that after the BSCB meeting he had met with a group of about 15 
young people who had come across as very articulate, and overall it had 
been a very positive session. Issues raised included: 
• Mental health and frustrations over waiting times.  
• Young people don’t feel that they are being listened to. 
• Places that don’t feel safe include the Barnsley Bus Station, and they are 

aware of low level drugs and drinking in the Town Centre which makes 
them feel uncomfortable. South Yorkshire Police have responded by 
allocating a Town Centre team to address some of the issues raised. 

• Other issues of concern included sexualisation of young women and 
reports of on-line bullying. 

 
Bob had written to each young person to thank them for their involvement 
and had reported back to them what had been done as a result. 

 

 

10. Continuous Service Improvement Plan  (Mel John-Ross) 

During the update it was noted that: 
• No actions are flagged as red - everything is on target and is work in 

progress.  New actions added since the last TEG are shaded grey.  
• Priorities remain: early help; front door; emotional and therapeutic 

support for young people.   
• Another priority is the need to improve our offer to care leavers and this 

will be the main agenda item at the next BSCB meeting.   
 

Rachel suggested that as there will be a discussion on early help at the next 
TEG meeting it would be helpful to include information from the improvement 
plan.  
 
Rachel suggested that the Officer Group carries out an assessment of where 
we think we are in terms of the framework, following the inspection 2 years 
ago. This could form the basis for discussion at the next TEG/ BSCB 
meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Margaret/ 

Mel  

Page 12



  Action 
11. Children’s workforce development  

The report prepared by Amanda Glew to provide TEG with an update in 
respect of improving staff skills and early help training was noted, and 
members agreed that they were happy to give their endorsement.  
 
Members were asked to provide any further feedback directly to Amanda 
Glew at AmandaGlew@barnsley.gov.uk  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Members 

12. TEG work programme review 

The TEG work programme had been extended to July 2017 and was 
presented for comment. 
 
Members were asked to keep it under review and to be aware of the 
discussions that are scheduled for future meetings.  
 
Margaret stated that Nina Sleight would attend the next TEG meeting in her 
absence.   
 
The Children and Young People’s Plan had been finalised and members 
were reminded to take it though their respective organisation’s governance 
structures.  
 

 

13. Date of next meeting 

The next TEG meeting will be held on 4 August 2016, from 13.30 – 16.30 
in Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3. 
 

 

 

Page 13

mailto:AmandaGlew@barnsley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



TEG Summary of Actions and Matters Arising - 17 June 2016
Minute No. Issue and action point Accountable

Officer/ Group
Progress/ date closed

Actions outstanding from previous meetings

9

Consider impetus on cultural change for  Improving Staff Skills to Deliver
Quality Services.  Paul agreed to take this forward.  This action was
carried forward at the June meeting and Ann O'Flynn undertook to follow
it up. 

Paul Hussey/ Ann
O'Flynn

4 4.1

Barnsley's Parent and Carer's Forum.  Need to increase the confidence
and effectiveness of the workforce, particularly in relation to personalised
budgets. At the June meeting it was agreed that Amanda would take
forward the issues in terms of the Workforce Development Strategy. 

Amanda

To be included as a workforce development need within
the WFD Strategy for Barnsley MBC employees.
Discussion at the Strategic Workforce Management
Development Group to identify scope and methods of
delivery for the wider workforce.

4.2 Inform the Barnsley Alliance (at their meeting at the end of June) of the
work of the Barnsley Parent and Carers Forum.

Margaret 

5 5.1
SEND Strategy. Colette and Margaret to work with Jonathan and Tracey
to emphasise the importance of including the child's voice and to ensure
that family support is strengthened.

Colette Gollcher /
Margaret Libreri

5.2 Colette to meet with Brigid to include the Health agenda. It is understook
that work is taking place with Karen O'Brien. 

Colette Gollcher  

7 Rachel to write to the Barnsley Alliance Board to ask them to commission
a piece of work around school exclusions for a future CYP Trust meeting. Rachel 

8

ECG work programme. Hold a workshop style discussion to consider the
significant issue around high risk delivery; how this work can be joined up
and where it fits in terms of the Children and Young People’s Plan.  at the
June  meeting  Richard  proposed  that  an  annual  report  of  activity  be
developed for the Trust,  including the work of the ECG. Agreed that a
draft report would be prepared for the next meeting.

Richard

 

Actions from 17 June 2016

5 5.1 Child Health Programme Board: Breastfeeding. Kay to invite colleagues
onto the Breastfeeding and Infant Feeding Steering Group. Kay Bennett

5.2(a) Teenage conception. Rebecca to let Sue Gibson know what local data
was needed. Rebecca

5.2(b)
Public  Health  to  coordinate  a  steering  group  to  track  the  impact  and
challenges from different  parts of  the system and to consider how this
work could be integrated.

Public Health 

5.2(c ) An update on teenage conception to be scheduled for a future meeting. Work Programme An  action  focused  discussion  on  reducing  teenage
pregnancies is scheduled for 6 October 2016.

5.3
Young People Health and Wellbeing data. Rachel and Julia to consider
how TEG partners could support the work of the Child Health Programme
Board to add value to this work. 

Rachel/ Julia

P
age 15

Item
 3a



5.4 0-19 Healthy Child Programme - progress. Clare had raised a concern by
GPs of the need to complete lengthy referral forms for the SNS. SWYPFT Anita McCrum of SWYPFT responded to Clare Bannon

via e-mail on 24.6.2016.

6 Mel to check with Nigel Leeder that quarterly meetings have been set up
with the Schools Safeguarding Leads and that dates are circulated. Mel

10 Continuous Service Improvement Plan. Information from the improvement
plan to form part of the discussion on early help at the next TEG meeting. Margaret/ Mel

11 Children's  Workforce  Development.  Members  to  provide  feedback/
comments on the report directly to Amanda Glew. Members No feedback had been received by 20 July 2016.

P
age 16



 
REPORT FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S TRUST 

EXECUTIVE GROUP 
 
 
 

Date of meeting: 
 

4th August 2016 

Report Title: 
 

Brief overview on approaches to child poverty and family support / 
parenting in Barnsley. 
CYPP Theme: Parenting (family support/ child poverty)   

Author: 
 

Name: Andrea Hoyland 
Job Title: Strategy Lead Early Intervention & Prevention: Healthier 
Communities 
E-mail: Andreahoyland@barnsley.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01226 773839 
 

Status of report: 
 

Not confidential 
 

Approved by: 

 
Jayne Hellowell HOS Healthier Communities 

 
1. 
 
 
 
 
 
2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose of report: 
 
This report provides a brief overview of activity in the Anti-Poverty and Think Family 
Programme areas of work to inform the CYP TEG action focussed discussion on the CYPP 
theme of Parenting (family support / child poverty). 
 
Introduction / Background: 
 
Key to the success of the 2020 future vision for a better Barnsley is the success of its 
residents; adults, children, and young people, as stronger more resilient individuals, 
supporting families who contribute positively in their communities, workplaces and local 
economy. 
 
Like all individuals and families, Barnsley residents experience normal life cycle transitions, 
they also live in the 39th most deprived area of the 326 local authorities in England, rendering 
a proportion of vulnerable residents additionally subject to the impacts of poverty. (Source: 
IMD 2015 –see illustration at Appendix 1). 
 
In Barnsley support for families who experience difficulties is delivered by services across the 
Council and partners, and oversight of ‘anti-poverty’ activities for the borough is facilitated via 
the Anti-Poverty Delivery Group of the Stronger Communities Partnership. 
 
Anti-Poverty Delivery Group and Action Plan: 
 
The Anti-Poverty Delivery group, is a multi-agency, cross sector partnership sub-group of the 
Stronger Communities Partnership, it seeks to co-ordinate partner activities that combat and 
tackle the impact of poverty upon vulnerable Barnsley residents. 
 
The Anti-Poverty Action Plan is a live document which responds to the broader whole family, 

Parenting (family support/ child poverty)   
Healthier Communities / Andrea Hoyland / 26.07.2016 

Page 1 of 6 

 
Page 17

Item 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. 
 
 

adult, and community perspectives of the impacts of poverty.  It is a practical, task oriented 
action plan that sets out joint council and partner activity to combat and tackle poverty in 
Barnsley.  
 
Each partner includes their activities that align to the challenge areas identified in the Anti-
Poverty Action Plan, and commits to ensure that their actions are targeted to respond to the 
needs of those resident groups and communities most affected by poverty and low income. 
The key deliverables of the Action Plan therefore remain within the strategic and operational 
responsibilities of those partner organisations and Business Units.  
 
The interlinked nature of the causes and effects of poverty are reflected in the four  challenge 
areas in the Anti-Poverty Action Plan, these are : 
 
• To increase early take up of financial advice & support for skills and employability:  

to help Barnsley people to make the most of the money that they have and improve their 
potential income. 

• To reduce child poverty: to help Barnsley parents to give their children the best start in life. 
• The Poverty Challenge: to ensure that our strategies and plans are poverty proof. 
• To evaluate our joint impact:  to understand if we are getting the results we expected. 
 
As noted, child poverty is a specified challenge area in the Action Plan with a set of 
associated actions. (see Appendix 2). 
 
The Anti-Poverty Delivery Group maintains a check and challenge perspective on the 
activities listed in the Anti-Poverty Action Plan. 
 
The imminent publication of the Government’s Life Chances Strategy will further inform the 
development of this area of work. 
 
Think Family Programme 

 
Barnsley’s Think Family Programme is the delivery mechanism of the national Troubled 
Families Programme. This is a payment by results (PbR) programme, with service 
transformation ambitions aligned to reducing costs to the public purse that require early 
identification of, and intervention with families who have multiple and complex needs. 
 
The Troubled Families Programme advocates a multi-agency, wrap around support model for 
families, with an assertive, single key worker approach to managing the various  interventions 
required to respond to their multiple and complex needs, it is closely aligned to early help  
models of working  
 
To be classified as ‘on programme’ a family must experience at least 2 of the following: 
 
1. Parents and children involved in crime or antisocial behaviour 
2. Children who have not been attending school regularly 
3. Adults out of work or at risk of financial exclusion and young people at risk of    
            worklessness   
4. Children who need help 
5. Families affected by domestic violence and abuse 
6. Parents and children with a range of health problems 
 
 
In Phase 2 of the programme 2015-20, Barnsley is tasked with identifying and working with 
2,210 families over the five year expanded programme. Government targets are set for 
numbers of families attached to the programme and for significant and sustained outcomes. 
 

Parenting (family support/ child poverty)   
Healthier Communities / Andrea Hoyland / 26.07.2016 

Page 2 of 6 

 
Page 18



Attachment fees are payable for families verified as meeting the identification criteria, and 
who are worked with according to the Troubled Families Programme Principles ( Think Family 
Principles) which are: 
 
1. There will have been an assessment that takes into account the needs of the whole 

family;  
2. There is an action plan that takes account of all (relevant) family members;  
3. There is a lead worker for the family that is recognised by the family and other 

professionals involved with the family 
4. The objectives in the family action plan are aligned to those in the area’s Troubled 

Families Outcomes plan (Barnsley Think Family Outcomes Plan) 
 
Outcomes payments are claimable when auditable evidence of significant and sustained 
improvement against assessed needs of all family members can be provided.  
 
In order to realise the funding available, the data processes required are managed and 
supported through the Think Family Early Intervention & Prevention Team in Healthier 
Communities. This team also commissions and manages the programme delivery 
requirements.  
 
Income generated is invested in family support interventions. Currently these are within 
existing referral and delivery mechanisms for intervention work with families in Barnsley. The 
funding supports intervention that meets the Troubled Families / Think Family Principles and 
provides the data required to evidence compliance with the national programme. Provision is 
funded in in Family Centres, Family Intervention Service, Youth Offending Team and 
Community Intervention Team. 
 
A sustainability plan/maturity model for the Think Family Programme is in development and 
will seek to continue to embed this work in wider service transformation developments with 
clear links to Early Help developments in Family Centres and Safeguarding developments in 
the MASH to ensure that families experiencing difficulties are supported effectively. 
 

5. Recommendations 
 
Members are asked to consider this input in order to inform their action focused discussion at 
the Children & Young People’s Trust Executive Group on 4th August. 
 

6. Conclusion/ next steps 
 
The delivery of Barnsley’s 2020 goals are contingent upon securing a shift towards more 
prevention and earlier intervention in order to build resilience, and more effectively target 
resources on those most in need. As detailed above these areas of work contribute to this 
agenda.  
 
The forward planning to continue to deliver the Think Family programme requirements and 
service transformation objectives, will support the development of an easily negotiable system 
to access parenting and family support which also takes account of and responds to the 
impact of child and family poverty.  
 

7. Risks/ barriers 
Failure to address the issue of effective co-ordination of parenting, family support and child 
poverty resources can lead to duplication and ineffective targeting of resource. 
 

8. Financial Implications 
Financial resource to deliver parenting, family support and child poverty interventions is 
currently situated in different areas of the Council and partner approaches. 

Parenting (family support/ child poverty)   
Healthier Communities / Andrea Hoyland / 26.07.2016 

Page 3 of 6 

 
Page 19



 
 

9. Co-production/ stakeholder engagement 
(State how views of children, young people, and partners have been included) 
As it is an overview to prompt the TEG action focussed discussion, this report has not been 
subject to consultation beyond BMBC at this time.  
 

10 Appendices/ background papers 
 
10.1 IMD infographic. 
10.2 Extract from Anti-Poverty Action Plan. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.1 Appendix 1: 
 

Parenting (family support/ child poverty)   
Healthier Communities / Andrea Hoyland / 26.07.2016 

Page 4 of 6 

 
Page 20



 

Parenting (family support/ child poverty)   
Healthier Communities / Andrea Hoyland / 26.07.2016 

Page 5 of 6 

 
Page 21



7.2 Appendix 2 Extract from Anti-Poverty Action plan 
 

Challenge 2: To reduce Child Poverty in Barnsley 

Aim: To help Barnsley Parents give their children the best start in life  

Objective  Outcome Action  Deadline  Leads Progress & date reviewed RAG 
2.1 Support and 
challenge partners 
delivering services 
and support to 
children and 
families.  
‘Monitor the gap’ 
in relevant 
outcomes between 
those children in 
Barnsley who are 
affected by 
poverty and those 
who are not. 

To ensure that partner 
strategies and plans 
target their support 
towards children and 
families which are 
most affected by 
poverty  
 

 
Identify families who are in poverty and low 
income through the assessment process (M) 

31st March 
2017 

Nina Sleight                  
Annette 
Rachelle Alick  

  
  M 

To monitor, support, challenge and deliver 
against the Early Help Action Plan 2016-17     
(S)     

  
  S 

Maximise opportunity to target support to 
families in poverty through Family Centres and 
Allied Teams (M) 
 

  M 

2.2 Maintain up to 
date poverty 
profile for the 
borough as part od 
the RABIT data 
dissemination. 
 
2.3 Discharge of 
Responsibility 
under the Child 
Poverty Act 2010  

Up to date borough-
wide Poverty Needs 
Assessment Evidence 
Base available to 
inform Anti-Poverty 
Delivery Group 
monitoring and 
challenge processes 
 
 
 

Refresh evidence base data relating to Child 
Poverty Needs Assessment as required (L) 
 

Live intranet 
data system by 
RABIT   

Elizabeth  
 Pitt  

 Reviewed June 2016: To be 
included in State of the Borough 
Portal reporting. 

S 

Consult with stakeholders if any changes are 
made to the child poverty strategy (L)  As required Andrea 

Hoyland  
Await publication of Life Chances 
Strategy ( due July 2016) N/A 

Parenting (family support/ child poverty)   
Healthier Communities / Andrea Hoyland / 26.07.2016 

Page 6 of 6 

 

P
age 22



 

REPORT FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S TRUST 
EXECUTIVE GROUP 

 

 

 
Date of meeting: 
 

4th August 2016 

Report Title: 
 

Healthy Weight / Childhood Obesity 

Author: 
 

Name: Rebecca Clarke 
Job Title: Public Health Specialist Practitioner 
E-mail: rebeccaclarke@barnsley.gov.uk  
Telephone: 01226 787445 
 

Status of report: 
 

Not confidential 
 

 

1. Summary of report 
 
The purpose of this report is to present a renewed focus on healthy weight across the life 
course as a public health priority. 
 
Background: 
 
Over 75% of children in Barnsley are a healthy weight when they start school however, 
throughout the life course, development of excess weight (overweight and obesity) increases 
to an extent that around 28% of Barnsley adults are a healthy weight. The proportion of 
underweight children remains around 1%, however there is insufficient information for 
estimates in adults. Interventions to promote healthy weight will therefore have to be targeted 
more at reducing excess weight and reducing the inequality gap across the life course 
through proportionate distribution of resources. In 2013/14 approximately 900 Barnsley 
residents (all ages) were admitted to hospital with either a primary or secondary diagnosis of 
obesity1, most of which could have been prevented. 
 
The World Health Organization (WHO) Global Strategy on Diet, Physical Activity and Health2 
provided recommendations for the promotion of healthy weight and prevention of non-
communicable diseases. In 2011, the government published Healthy Lives; Healthy People A 
Call to Action on Obesity in England3 proposed that a new way of looking at the issue was 
needed to make a step-change towards a healthier weight for everyone. Two new national 
ambitions were set: 
 

 Achieve a sustained downward trend in the level of excess weight in children by 2020 
and 

 Achieve a downward trend in the level of excess weight averaged across all adults by 
2020. 

 

                                                 
1
 HSICIC (2015) Statistics on obesity, physical activity and diet, England  

http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB16988/obes-phys-acti-diet-eng-2015.pdf Accessed 25/04/2016 
2
 WHO (2004)  Global Strategy on Diet, Physical Activity and Health http://www.who.int/dietphysicalactivity/en/ Accessed 

25/04/2016 
3
 HM Government (2011) Healthy Lives, Healthy People A Call to Action on Obesity in England 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213720/dh_130487.pdf Accessed 
25/04/2016 

Page 23

Item 7

mailto:rebeccaclarke@barnsley.gov.uk
http://www.hscic.gov.uk/catalogue/PUB16988/obes-phys-acti-diet-eng-2015.pdf
http://www.who.int/dietphysicalactivity/en/
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213720/dh_130487.pdf


 
The Barnsley Public Health Strategy4 identifies that obesity in adults and children remains a 
challenge, and lies at the root of many causes of avoidable ill-health and needs to be 
addressed. 
 
National update: 
 
To support local work on childhood obesity, Public Health England will be launching two new 
resources later this year: a child obesity framework and prioritisation tool to provide practical 
support to help development of local needs assessments, and obesity strategies locally.  In 
addition this Summer Change4Life with Disney returns with 10 Minute Shake Up activities.  
The campaign encourages children to ‘Just Keep Moving’ to help reach the 60 minutes of 
exercise they need each day through 10 minute bursts of moderate to vigorous activity. 
 
The Government's strategy for tackling childhood obesity in England was expected to be 
published in the summer, however this has been delayed further now with an unknown 
publication date.  It is understood that the strategy will be a key step forward in helping our 
children live healthier lives, with a key focus on the obesogenic environment and a whole 
systems approach to tackling the issue. 
 
The scale of the challenge: 
 
High obesity levels are usually linked to poverty, deprivation, unhealthy diets and a lack of 
exercise. A whole system approach to tackling obesity is critical – from production and 
promotion of healthy diets to redesigning the built environment to promote walking, together 
with wider cultural changes to shift society values around food and activity. 
 
Data from the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) shows that in Barnsley very 
few children (0.7% at reception and 1.2% at year 6) are underweight, compared with those 
who are either overweight or obese (20% at reception and 31.6% at year 6)5 
 
Public Health England estimates that around 35.1% of adults aged 16 years and over are 
obese in Barnsley and 71.6% are classified as overweight or obese. 
 
Obesity in pregnancy increases risks to health for the mother and child during and after 
pregnancy. In Barnsley the level of obesity is estimated to be around 10.1% based on 
booking data from local maternity services. 
 
The Foresight Report Tackling Obesities: Future Choices6, states that by 2050 modelling 
indicates that 60% of adult men, 50% of adult women and about 25% of all children under 16 
could be obese.  Obesity increases the risk of a range of chronic diseases, particularly type 2 
diabetes, stroke and coronary heart disease and also cancer and arthritis. The NHS costs 
attributable to overweight and obesity are projected to double to £10 billion per year by 2050. 
The wider costs to society and business are estimated to reach £49.9 billion per year. 
 
What we will do? 
 
Tackling obesity requires the work of many organisations and partners.  There is a need for 
local government, NHS, communities, businesses and the third sector to work together, with a 
shared ambition and long-term commitment to promoting a healthy weight.  Although there 
has been some good progress over the last few years, we acknowledge that we need to 

                                                 
4
 Barnsley Public Health Strategy (2015) https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/public-health-strategy Accessed 25/04/2016 

5
 2014/15 data is likely to be an under estimate of the true figure as an opt in rather than opt out approach to data 

collection for the NCMP was taken in Barnsley during 2014/15 
6 Government Office for Science (2007)Tackling Obesities:Future Choices –Project Report2nd Edition 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/287937/07-1184x-tackling-obesities-future-
choices-report.pdf  Accessed 26/04/2016 

Page 24

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/public-health-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/287937/07-1184x-tackling-obesities-future-choices-report.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/287937/07-1184x-tackling-obesities-future-choices-report.pdf


develop a multi-faceted approach that involves both individual and environmental 
approaches. 
 
In response to this it is proposed that we adopt the wider determinants of obesity approach in 
tackling the issue of overweight and obesity in Barnsley. This approach is in line with the 
guiding principles of the published ‘Healthy lives, healthy people: a call to action on obesity in 
England (DoH 2011)³, and in line with the public health NICE guideline – PH 42 Obesity: 
working with local communities7 
 
To progress this scoping work the following steps will be undertaken initially: 
 

 Mapping of current Barnsley weight management interventions across the life course. 

 Healthy weight needs assessment to be carried out. 

 A self-assessment to be undertaken against the recommendations from the NICE 
guidance PH42 Obesity: working with local communities’8 

 Consultation with key stakeholders. 
 
It is intended that as a result of this work a series of high level strategic actions will be 
developed into a framework to be delivered by a new multi-agency Healthy Weight Alliance.   
 
Through the Alliance there will be a renewed focus on prevention whilst also providing 
support to those children and adults who are above the healthy weight range. This will be 
achieved by delivering evidence based programmes across the life course to prevent 
overweight and obesity, and improving the management provided for those children and 
adults who are above the healthy weight range. In particular, there is a need to support 
population groups who are at greater risk of developing obesity. 
 
The Alliance will develop links with other existing groups, services, programmes or 
organisations that are progressing healthy weight activities to ensure there is a coordinated 
approach across the borough and a shared responsibility for promoting healthy weight. 
 

2. Proposals/ Recommendations/ Action required 
 

 To note the scale of the challenge and potential impact if action to tackle obesity is not 
progressed. 

 To agree the wider determinants of obesity approach and the above outlined steps to 
progress the scoping work. 

 To note the need for collaborative working with all relevant partners required for 
implementation of a Healthy Weight Alliance and development of high level strategic 
actions. 

 

 

                                                 
7
  NICE PH42(2012) Obesity working with local communities https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph42 Accessed 

25/04/2016 
 

Page 25

https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph42


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

Barnsley Sport and Active 
Lifestyle Action Plan 2016 -2018 
A high level action plan for improving physical activity in 
Barnsley 

 

1/19/2016 

P
age 27

Item
 8



Barnsley Sport and Active Lifestyle Action Plan 2016-2018 

Developing the Action Plan 

The following action plan details recommendations for the delivery of the Sport and Active Lifestyle Strategy over the next two and half years (2016 -2018). 

Focus of the Action Plan  

Across Barnsley we have high levels of physical inactivity - 37.8% of adults are classified as inactive (PHOF, 2015). Only 39% of boys and 20% of girls achieve the recommended levels 
of at least 7+ hours of physical activity a week (Year 10 Health & Lifestyle Survey, 2013). Levels of inactivity follow a similar pattern to that of deprivation with lower levels of 
participation in the East of the Borough to that of the West.  

The action plan has been developed through a series of facilitated workshops with stakeholders, from those organisations represented on the Barnsley Sport and Active Lifestyles 
Partnership (BSALP). The action plan is informed by national and local strategies such as Everybody Active, every day: an evidence-based approach to physical activity (PHE, 2014), 
Barnsley’s’ Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (2013) and Barnsley’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy.    

Targets of the Action Plan 

The success of the action plan will be measured through the Public Health Outcomes Indicators 2.13i Percentage of active adults and 2.13ii percentage of inactive adults. We have 
outlined within the Barnsley CCG and Local Authority Shared Ambitions to Reduce Health Inequalities Report, proposed trajectories to reduce inactivity to 36% by 2018. 

Structure of the Plan 

The plan outlines recommendations and details of implementation (lead, progress, timeframe etc) for each of the four themes identified (Place, People, Communities, 
Communication & Advocacy) 

 Objective – Desired statement that the action is intend to achieve. 
 Action – Provides details of the recommended actions. 
 Lead/ Action Owner – Outlines the organisations and/or departments responsible for taking a lead and overseeing the delivering of the recommendation /action 
 Timescale-  Short 6 – 12 months, Medium 12 – 18 months, Long 18 – 30 months  
 Indicator - relates to suggested  measure of success  
 Linked to SALS Aims – Relates to the aims the action links to in the Sport and Active Lifestyle Strategy. 
 Performance Measure (RAG) –  Indicates if action/project is on track 

 
1 

 

P
age 28



Place - Creating the right physical environment for activity to take place   
 
 
Objective 

  
Action 

Lead & 
Partners 

Timescale Indicator  Linked 
to SALS 
Aims 

Performance  
Management (RAG) 

Ensure opportunities 
for physical activity 
are incorporated 
within transport 
strategy and active 
travel plans   

Develop collaborative approach 
between  transportation / highways 
and  public health for consideration 
of new and proposed schemes 
 

Public Health 
(Place) 
 
BMBC – 
Highways & 
Transportation 
 
SWYFT 

Short Number of new projects 
/ schemes  including 
health outcomes 
 
Economic value of  
mortality rate 
improvements - Health 
Economic Assessment 
Tool (HEAT)  

1. 
4. 

Amber – Involved in initial 
consultation on a number of 
future cycle routes. 

 
Develop a systematic approach to 
delivery of walking and cycling 
opportunities 

Ensure Sports Facility 
and Playing Pitch 
Strategy is compliant 
with National 
Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) 
 

Produce a new Sports Facility and 
Playing Pitch Strategy that Includes 
an up to date evidence base.  

BMBC – Sport 
and Active 
Recreation 
 
BMBC –Planning 
 
Strategic Leisure 

Short (end 
March 
2016) 

Completion of the strategy 1. 
4. 

Green – in progress draft to be 
delivered in March 2016 

Use the evidence and 
recommendations identified in the  
Sports Facilities and Playing Pitch 
Strategy  to develop a prioritised 
timetable with partners 

 
BMBC -Planning 
 

 
Medium 
(Jan 2017) 

Number of completed 
recommendations 

1. 
4. 

Green  

Maximise health 
outcomes by 
accessing external 
funding opportunities 
for sport and physical 
activity 

Develop hierarchy of priority 
projects for allocation of section 106 
/ community infrastructure levy 
(CIL) funding based on maximising 
health impact and achieving public 
health outcomes   

BMBC – Sport 
and Active 
recreation 
BMBC – 
Planning 
 
 

Short Amount of funding 
accessed with sport or 
physical activity 
outcomes 
 

1. 
4.   

Amber 

 
2 

 

P
age 29



Continue to develop 
access to parks and 
open spaces to 
provide opportunities 
for  sport and 
physical activity 

Share and make greater use of parks 
user profiling data across relevant 
services.  

BMBC- Parks  
  
 
BMBC – sport 
and active 
recreation 

Medium 
 

Number of park runs 
delivered 
 
Number of attendances 

1. 
4 

Amber 

Develop standard approach to 
evaluating parks projects. 
 
Evaluate initiatives and usage of 
equipment to demonstrate impact  
on regular participation 

People – Creating a skilled and motivated paid and volunteer workforce who are able to inspire, promote and lead others to an active lifestyle 
 
Objective  Action Lead  Timescale Indicator  Links to 

SALS 
Aims 

Performance  
Management (RAG) 

Workplaces 
encourage and 
support, physical 
activity, sport and 
active travel   

Support workplaces to  encourage 
employees to be physically active   
 

BMBC Sport 
Active  
Recreation 

Short Number of work places 
with active travel plans 
 
Number of people 
trained to support 
workplace physical 
activity  
 
Number of workplaces 
signed up to deliver the 
workplace health 
charter  

1. 
 4. 

 

For paid staff to 
access behaviour 
change training 
that includes 
physical activity 
support 

 
Explore opportunities to build physical 
activity behaviour change messages 
into training  

 
BMBC 

 
 
Medium 
 
 
 
 

Number of training 
sessions that 
incorporate messages 
for improving physical 
activity  

 
3 

 

 
3 

 

P
age 30



 
Develop a culture 
of self help 
physical activity 
programmes 
using volunteers 

Raise awareness of physical activity 
and sporting opportunities available 
to volunteers 

BMBC – sport 
and active 
recreation 
 
VAB 
 
SWYPHT 
 
PSS –Be Well 
Barnsley 
CCG 
Area Teams 
 

Short 
 

Number of volunteers 
involved supporting 
physical activity 
programmes 

2  
3 

 

 
Identify and recruit local health 
champions who are willing to 
promote messages, support delivery 
of activities or be trained up to lead 
sport and physical activity sessions in 
their area 

 
Number of volunteer 
hours related to 
physical activity 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Community – Support, develop and raise awareness of the opportunities that already exist within our communities   
 
Objective Action Lead Timescale Indicator  Linked 

to SALS 
aims 

Performance  
Management (RAG) 

Early Years- All 
early years 0-5 
across Barnsley to 
have an active 
start to life 

Develop a plan that ensures all 
agencies working with early years 
provide opportunities for parents 
and carers to be active with young 
people 

BMBC – Sport 
and Active 
Recreation 
 
 
 
BMBC- 
communities 
 
BSALP 
 
 
SWYFT 

Medium 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development of a plan 4  

Improve 
awareness 

Ensure all agencies working with 
early years incorporate key 

Short Number of messages 
included in training 

 2. 
 3.  

 

 
4 

 

P
age 31



amongst parents 
and agencies 
working with 
early years sector 
of the benefits of 
being physically 
active  

messages for physical activity 
within training courses and 
programmes  

Schools 
CCG 
BSALP 
 

courses 
 
 

Children & Young 
People – To 
increase the 
engagement of 
children and 
young people in 
physical activity  

Ensure clubs and community 
organisations are supported to 
access funding to improve their 
offer 

BMBC – Sport 
& Active 
Recreation  
 
BMBC – 
Communities 
 
Schools 
 
Schools 
alliance 
 
BSALP 
 
 
 

 
Short 

Number of clubs / 
organisations 
supported to apply for 
funding  

 
1.  
4. 

 

Ensure pathways are in place for 
young people to achieve personal 
success in physical activity and 
sport 

 
Medium 

 
Number of children 
increasing physical 
activity as a result of a 
specific project 

3.  
4. 

 

Ensure systematic approaches for 
increasing physical activity in 
children and young people are 
built into school based 
programmes  

 
Medium 

Number of schools 
demonstrating 
approaches to increase 
physical activity  

  

Ensure opportunities are available 
to support children and young 
people to learn to swim 
 
 
 

 
 
Medium 

Number of swimming 
lessons delivered 
 
Number of 
children/young people 
attending sessions 

3.  
4. 

 

Adults – Develop 
interventions  
that improve 
activity amongst 
inactive groups of 
adults 

Work with National Governing 
Bodies  to develop adult specific 
programs i.e. Back to Netball 
 
 
 

Pss – Be well 
Barnsley 
 
BMBC 
 
Yorkshire 

 
Short 
 
 
 
 

Active People Survey – 
Increase in number of 
active adults  
 
Active people survey – 
reduction in Inactive 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
5 

 

P
age 32



  
 
 
Be Well Barnsley supports its 
clients to be physically active by 
delivering community based 
physical activity session’s 
 
 
Establish an Inclusive sport Funded 
project  - Creating Connections  
within Barnsley 
 
 
 
Develop pilot programmes that 
engage the least active adults and 
those with long term conditions to 
be active 
 
Develop physical activity offer 
within already existing 
programmes/initiatives 
 
 
 

Sport 
Foundation 
 
BSALP 
 
BPL 
 
Team Active  
 
Barnsley FC 
Community 
Trust 
 
Area Teams 

 
 

Adults  
 
A 2% increase in those 
physically active over 
the lifespan of the Be 
Well contract (3 year 
contract) 
 
Number people 
referred into   service 
 
Number people 
supported to access 
sport or physical 
activity opportunities. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
1. 
2.  

 
 
 
Short 
 
 
 
 
 
Short 
 
 
Medium 
 
 
 
 
 
Medium 

 

Adults -Improve 
awareness of the 
benefits of 
physical activity in 
the health & care 
setting   

 Ensure all agencies working with 
adults incorporate key messages 
for physical activity within training 
courses and programmes such as 
falls prevention 
 
 

SWYFT 
BMBC 
BSALP 
CCG 

 
Medium 

Number of courses 
covering physical 
activity and falls 
prevention 

2.  
3. 

 

 
6 

 

P
age 33



 

Communication and Advocacy – ensure that everyone is aware of the benefits and opportunities to be active. Ensuring that the decision makers in the 
Borough promote physical activity and sport to achieve specific outcomes. 
Objective Action Lead  Timescale Indicator  Linked 

to SALS 
aims 

Performance  
Management (RAG) 

Ensure Barnsley 
residents are aware 
of the positive 
benefits of sport 
and physical activity 
and opportunities 
to take part  

Produce a collective 
communications plan between 
organisations  

BSALP Short  Production of a plan  1.  
4. 

 

Utilise national Campaigns to 
inspire people to be active  such 
as This Girl Can, Change 4 Life  

BSALP Medium Number of 
interventions / 
programmes delivered  
that are linked to 
national campaigns 

1.   
4. 

 

Research & data  
Objective Action Lead  Timescale Indicator  Linked 

to SALS 
Aims  

Performance  
Management (RAG) 

Co-ordinate 
research on where 
physical activity can 
make the greatest 
health impact. 

Explore feasibility of conducting and 
co-ordinating a specific health needs 
assessment to identify our priorities  

BMBC Short  
Completion of needs 
assessment  

1. 
2. 

 

 
7 

 

P
age 34



A local benchmarking briefing for South West

Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

Kadra AbdinasirKadra Abdinasir

Access denied
A teenager's pathway through the

mental health system

Page 35

Item 10



 
 

1 
 

Introduction 

 

Our recent report, Access Denied: A teenager’s pathway through the mental health system, 

explored how young people, particularly those most vulnerable, access and are supported by 

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS). Please find enclosed a copy of our 

report for your information. 

The findings in the report are based upon a Freedom of Information (FOI) request we sent out in 

April 2015 to 54 providers of specialist mental health services. We received responses from 36 

mental health trusts that deliver CAMHS, a response rate of 67%. We asked providers for 

information about the 10 to 17 year olds that they treated in the financial year 2014-2015, 

including those young people identified as vulnerable1.  

This briefing presents findings from the report and provides an overview of how the response 

from your local mental health trust fits into a national picture. 

Referrals received by South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation 

Trust and how they were dealt with 

 

Our report finds that approximately 200,000 young people aged 10 to 17 are referred to 

specialist mental health services each year across the country. Of them 30,000 were not 

accepted and not signposted to other services. 

South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust received 3780 referrals to CAMHS 

Tier 3 services for children and young people aged 10 to 17 in 2014-2015. This briefing 

considers your trust’s performance against the national average. We have also included a range 

of recommendations to help improve access to CAMHS in your area. 

In South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust the rates of referrals, (including 

those assessed and accepted, not accepted without further action and not accepted but referred 

elsewhere) are presented in the table below. We have compared the information you have 

provided with the national average. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
1 There is a lack of reliable and consistent national data on numbers of young people aged 10-
17 referred to specialist mental health services and the responses they receive. For example, 
nine trusts told us that the data on referrals to their specialist mental health services is not 
available in an easily retrievable format. 

Page 36

http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/sites/default/files/AccessDenied_final.pdf


 
 

2 
 

Referral rates in percentages for young people aged 10–17 for CAMHS Tier 3 services in 

the year 2014/5 

 
(National figures based on responses from 14 providers) 

 
The majority of referrals that are not accepted are deescalated 
 
Nationally, very high rates of those referrals that are not accepted and are signposted are 

referred to CAMHS Tier 2 early intervention and prevention services (87%), indicating that these 

referrals do not meet the threshold for a specialist intervention. Meanwhile, the Tier 2 services 

they are referred on to report rising demand for support and face major reductions to their 

budgetsi. 

Waiting times 

 

Based on the information we collected the national average waiting time for an initial Tier 3 

assessment in the financial year 2013 to 2014 was 72 days. This has reduced to 66 days in the 

year 2014 to 2015. However we found substantial variations in waiting times between local 

providers with some offering an initial assessment within 13 days and others a much longer 

period of up to 140 days, a striking example of the geographical variation that exists within 

CAMHS provision. Last year, 41% of providers reduced their average waiting time whilst a third 

of providers saw waiting times increase. It is worth noting that following an initial assessment, 

young people will then be placed on a further waiting list to receive the treatment they have 

been assessed as needing.  

Waiting times for an initial assessment for South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation 

Trust for the areas of Barnsley, Calderdale and Kirklees and Wakefield is provided in the table 

below alongside the national average and data from areas who reported the shortest and 

longest waiting times.  

 

60% 

35% 

5% 

70% 

15% 16% 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

Assessed and
accepted

Assessed and not
accepted without

further action

Assessed, not
accepted and referred
to alternative services

South West Yorkshire Partnership
NHS Foundation Trust

National average

Page 37



 
 

3 
 

Year 

South West 
Yorkshire 

Partnership 
NHS Foundation 

Trust 
(Wakefield) 

South West 
Yorkshire 

Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust 

(Barnsley) 

South West 
Yorkshire 

Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust 
(Calderdale and 

Kirklees) 

National 
Average 

Shortest 
reported 

waiting times 

Longest 
reported 
waiting 
times 

2013/14 51 days 106 days 60 days 72 days 8 days 123 days 

2014/15 31 days 91 days 45 days 66 days 13 days 140 days 

(National figures based on responses from 35 providers) 

 

Referral acceptance rates vary by the referral source 

 

Over half (53%) of referrals to CAMHS Tier 3 services come from General Practitioners and 

18% of these referrals were assessed and not accepted.  

 

Vulnerable young people are more likely to be referred to specialist mental health services by 

practitioners in other statutory services. The data from 22 providers that responded to our FOI 

shows that these referrals have high chances of not receiving the desired response. For 

example, 14% of referrals from social services are not accepted without further action.  

 

Further details about where the majority of referrals come from and are dealt with were provided 

by your trust for the areas of Barnsley, Calderdale and Kirklees and Wakefield and are 

presented below. 

 

Source of CAMHS referral – referrals received over the period 2014 and 2015 

Source of referral (South West 
Yorkshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust - Barnsley) 

Percentage of 
referrals received 

by CAMHS by 
source 

Percentage of referrals 
assessed and accepted 

by source 

Percentage of 
referrals assessed 
and not accepted 

without further action  

GP 56% 65% 35% 

Paediatric  health service 18% 82% 18% 

Other health service 12% 87% 13% 

Educational psychologist 2% 90% 10% 

School 1% 70% 30% 

Further educational or other 
educational establishments 

0% 0% 0% 

Social services 4% 82% 18% 

Local Safeguarding Children's 
Board 

0% 0% 0% 

Police 0% 0% 0% 

Voluntary sector 
organisations 

0% 0% 0% 

Other 7% 79% 21% 

 

Page 38



 
 

4 
 

Source of referral (South West 
Yorkshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust -Calderdale and 
Kirklees) 

Percentage of referrals 
received by CAMHS by 

source 

Percentage of 
referrals assessed 
and accepted by 

source 

Percentage of 
referrals assessed 
and not accepted 

without further 
action  

CMHT (Adult Mental Health) 0.1% 0% 0% 

Community based paediatrics 1% 9% 55% 

Education service 5% 8% 24% 

GP 51% 11% 46% 

Health Visitor 0.3% 0% 33% 

Hospital based paediatrics 7% 11% 40% 

Inpatient service (Adult Mental 
Health) 

0.1% 50% 50% 

Inpatient service (CAMHS) 0.1% 50% 0% 

NHS Direct 0.1% 0% 0% 

NHS Hospital Staff- Consultant 
(CAMHS) 

4% 35% 6% 

NHS Hospital Staff - Other 11% 14% 35% 

Other 7% 14% 42% 

Other - Internal (from other 
SWYFT team) 

1% 40% 20% 

Other Independent Sector Mental 
Health Services 

3% 8% 19% 

Other Primary Health Care 3% 0% 49% 

Out of Area Agency 0.1% 0% 0% 

Permanent transfer from another 
Mental Health NHS Trust 

0.3% 0% 67% 

Police 0.3% 17% 33% 

Prison 0.1% 0% 100% 

Probation Service 0.3% 20% 20% 

School Nurse 3% 15% 36% 

Self-referral 0.4% 50% 13% 

Social Services 4% 4% 49% 

Voluntary Sector Organisation 0.2% 33% 0% 

 

Page 39



 
 

5 
 

Source of referral (South West 
Yorkshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust - Wakefield) 

Percentage of 
referrals received 

by CAMHS by 
source 

Percentage of referrals 
assessed and accepted 

by source 

Percentage of 
referrals assessed 
and not accepted 

without further action  

Community based paediatrics 8% 13% 23% 

Education service 1% 10% 24% 

Employer 0% 0% 100% 

GP 52% 14% 35% 

Health Visitor 0.1% 0% 0% 

Hospital based paediatrics 2% 7% 19% 

Inpatient service (Forensics) 0.1% 100% 0% 

NHS Direct 0.1% 0% 0% 

NHS Hospital Staff - Other 13% 4% 0% 

Other 17% 19% 19% 

Other - Internal (from other 
SWYFT team) 

1% 21% 13% 

Other Independent Sector 
Mental Health Services 

0.1% 0% 0% 

Other Primary Health Care 0.2% 0% 33% 

Out of Area Agency 0.1% 50% 50% 

Police 1% 10% 30% 

Prison 1% 74% 0% 

School Nurse 1% 6% 35% 

Social Services 3% 18% 29% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 
 

6 
 

Although voluntary sector providers often find it challenging to refer a young person to specialist 

CAMHS, we found that nationally where they can refer, 94% of these referrals were assessed 

and accepted. Consideration should therefore be given to widening the referral criteria for 

specialist CAMHS services to allow referrals to be made by local agencies working with children 

and self-referral where appropriate to improve access for vulnerable groups of young people. 

As part of our recent report Old Enough to Know Better? One of our practitioners explained: 

______________________________________________________________________ 

‘Our project can’t make CAMHS referrals. It needs to be done through social workers or GPs. 

None of the young people we’re working with are getting CAMHS support. Often the excuse is 

that the young person is too chaotic. One excuse was that “the young person’s feeling and 

emotional health was a result of the situation they find themselves with”. This is the case with all 

young people we work with, but only harder to engage with CAMHS once a young person nears 

adulthood.’ 

Interview with The Children’s Society specialist staff 

It is important that local agencies working to support young people with mental health problems 

develop joint approaches to ensure all interventions are complimentary and most effective.  

In particular, the joint working between mental health practitioners and professionals from 

children’s services is a key to ensuring that a vulnerable child does not slip through the net of 

services and that risks are adequately assessed at each stage of decision making on the case. 

Inconsistent policies on access for vulnerable groups 

Vulnerable groups of young people such as children in care or those who have experienced 

sexual abuse overall are not being adequately supported in their journey through the CAMHS 

system. For example, we found that 64% of providers identify looked-after children as a 

vulnerable group in the initial stages of their referral yet only 40% offer priority access and less 

than a third (28%) have provisions in place to support them when they transition. Less than half 

(47%) of trusts have clear pathways set up for referrals of children who have experienced 

sexual exploitation despite the recent national focus on child sex abuse and its impact. 

As part of taking forward the Future in Mind strategy, particularly around the vulnerable group’s 

agenda, local providers of CAMHS and children’s services should focus on improving access to 

specialist mental health services for vulnerable groups of adolescents. 

The following groups are identified as vulnerable in your local policies on access, engagement 

and transitions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41

http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/old-enough-to-know-better-why-sexually-exploited-teenagers-are


 
 

7 
 

Recognising and responding to signs of vulnerability in CAMHS 
Vulnerable groups of 
children and young 
people recognised by 
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust in 

Barnsley may include but 
are not limited to:  

Identified as 
vulnerable in 
your CAMHS 
referral and 

initial 
assessment 

forms 
Offer fast-track 

access to CAMHS 

Identified in 
reengagement 

policy when the 
patient Does Not 

Attend (DNA) 

Identified in the 
forms or policies 
on transitioning 

from CAMHS 
services 

Children affected by poverty 
and deprivation identified by 
post-code or area ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children from families in 
receipt of council tax 
support ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children receiving free 
school meals ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children of parents in 
receipt of Income Support 
or Job Seekers Allowance ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children vulnerable due to 
their age ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young people aged 16 and 
17 ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Looked After Children ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Looked After Children in 
out-of-authority placements ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Care leavers ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children in need ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children on child protection 
plan ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Child victims of sexual 
exploitation ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Child victims of domestic 
violence ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Refugee, migrant and 
trafficked children ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young people with 
substance misuse problems ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young people aged 16-17 
who reside in supported 
accommodation, hostels 
and B&Bs ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young offenders ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Child victims of crime ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young carers ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Page 42



 
 

8 
 

Children and young people 
with SEN needs or a 
disability ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children with acute mental 
health problems ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

 

Vulnerable groups of 
children and young 
people recognised by 
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust in 

Calderdale and Kirklees 
may include but are not 
limited to:  

Identified as 
vulnerable in 
your CAMHS 
referral and 

initial 
assessment 

forms 
Offer fast-track 

access to CAMHS 

Identified in 
reengagement 

policy when the 
patient Does Not 

Attend (DNA) 

Identified in the 
forms or policies 
on transitioning 

from CAMHS 
services 

Children affected by poverty 
and deprivation identified by 
post-code or area ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children from families in 
receipt of council tax 
support ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children receiving free 
school meals ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children of parents in 
receipt of Income Support 
or Job Seekers Allowance ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children vulnerable due to 
their age ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young people aged 16 and 
17 ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Looked After Children ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Looked After Children in 
out-of-authority placements ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Care leavers ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children in need ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children on child protection 
plan ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Child victims of sexual 
exploitation ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Child victims of domestic 
violence ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Refugee, migrant and 
trafficked children ✖  Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young people with 
substance misuse problems ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young people aged 16-17 
who reside in supported 
accommodation, hostels 
and B&Bs ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young offenders ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Page 43



 
 

9 
 

Child victims of crime ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young carers ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children and young people 
with SEN needs or a 
disability ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children with acute mental 
health problems ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

 

Vulnerable groups of 
children and young 
people recognised by 
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust in 

Wakefield may include 
but are not limited to:  

Identified as 
vulnerable in 
your CAMHS 
referral and 

initial 
assessment 

forms 
Offer fast-track 

access to CAMHS 

Identified in 
reengagement 

policy when the 
patient Does Not 

Attend (DNA) 

Identified in the 
forms or policies 
on transitioning 

from CAMHS 
services 

Children affected by poverty 
and deprivation identified by 
post-code or area ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children from families in 
receipt of council tax 
support ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children receiving free 
school meals ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children of parents in 
receipt of Income Support 
or Job Seekers Allowance ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children vulnerable due to 
their age ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young people aged 16 and 
17 ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Looked After Children ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Looked After Children in 
out-of-authority placements ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Care leavers ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children in need ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children on child protection 
plan ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Child victims of sexual 
exploitation ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Child victims of domestic 
violence ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Refugee, migrant and 
trafficked children ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young people with 
substance misuse problems ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Page 44



 
 

10 
 

Young people aged 16-17 
who reside in supported 
accommodation, hostels 
and B&Bs ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young offenders ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Child victims of crime ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Young carers ✖ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children and young people 
with SEN needs or a 
disability ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

Children with acute mental 
health problems ✔ Case by case basis Case by case basis Case by case basis 

 

 

Case Study: Julia’s story 
Juliaii, a 12 year old female, was referred into The Children’s Society’s project supporting young 

people at risk of child sexual exploitation due to concerns that she was exposing her body to 

strangers. Julia had also been involved in web-based chats with a man where she had received 

indecent images and messages, which the police were investigating. Prior to her referral into the 

project, she had been referred both to mental health services by another local service and to a 

community paediatrician’s service regarding her diagnosis for ADHD by her GP. None of the 

referrals resulted in action for more than a year. 

 

Throughout her sessions with practitioners in The Children's Society's project, concerns arose 

around her behaviour that made her vulnerable to exploitation. A new referral was made into 

CAMHS copying in the relevant community paediatrician. The community paediatrician failed to 

respond.  CAMHS rejected the referral due to the involvement of the community paediatrician, 

and their feeling that a referral to social care would be necessary. But social care services felt 

that they could not meet Julia’s needs. This case is still ongoing. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 
 

11 
 

Responses to Did Not Attends (DNAs) cases and discharge policies 
 
Addressing instances of Did Not Attends (DNA) is very important since without follow-up it is far 

too easy for young people to miss out on support altogether. We believe that all mental health 

services should have DNA policies that clearly specify the need for risk assessments on both 

missed initial appointment and for those where the patient is on course for treatment. 

Specifically these policies should outline how service providers will liaise with other agencies in 

cases of young people from vulnerable groups. There is also a need for further research into 

why young people miss appointments. 

Total number of DNA rates for young people aged 10-17 during the financial year 2014/15        

Total number of DNAs for both 
initial assessment and those on 

course (aged 10-17) 
Percentage of DNAs for initial 

assessment 

Percentage of DNAs for 
patients on course for 

treatment  

6,520 24% 76% 
       (National figures based on responses from 8 providers) 

 

Over three quarters of recorded Did Not Attend cases (DNA) are of those young people who 

were undergoing treatment from specialist CAMHS and only 1 in four instances were for initial 

appointments. This suggests that there may be problems in some areas in retaining 

engagement from service users that need to be further explored. 

Our report has also found that young people are sometimes being discharged from services 

without a proper assessment. Around 1 in every 10 cases (9%) involving children aged between 

10 and 17 who fail to attend their appointment with a specialist mental health worker are 

discharged without a risk assessment.  

 

Support for young people during transition 

 

In our Seriously Awkward reportiii, we drew attention to the risk factors faced by vulnerable 

teenagers as they begin to experience significant changes in their life and become exposed to 

some of the realities of adulthood. The lack of transition policies both for between different 

mental health services and between child and adult services, also places vulnerable children 

and young people at risk of not getting the support they need at crucial times in their lives. 

Children in care and care leavers were the most identified group in transition policies but still 

their needs are not recognised by more than two thirds of providers. 

It is also notable that there are low levels of transition planning for children who have been 

victims of violence –including domestic violence and sexual exploitation. Many of this group 

already face particularly difficult transitions in other areas of their lives – the lack of support 

during transitions in mental health service is an additional concern. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 46

http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/seriously-awkward-how-vulnerable-16-and-17-year-olds-are


 
 

12 
 

Recommendations for South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust  
As CAMHS across the country begin transforming the quality and standards of their delivery, we 

believe it presents an opportunity for local areas to ensure their CAMHS transformation plans 

consider access to mental health services for vulnerable groups of young people as a priority 

Recommendation for all local 

partners2 

To improve access to CAMHS for the most 

vulnerable children and young people, local 

partners should put in place policies and 

procedures to ensure timely help and offer 

priority access based on need and risk. It 

should always be the case that data on 

access and the outcomes achieved is 

collected and published.  

 

Recommendations for Clinical 

Commissioning Groups  

Providers of CAMHS should review the 

effectiveness of their referral management 

system3, giving consideration to how the 

system improves access and waiting times.  

 

Providers of CAMHS should have clear 

policies on providing support for those who 

are not accepted, including guidance on 

where to refer them as well as what risk 

assessments need to be undertaken. 

 

Training for practitioners delivering CAMHS 

should specifically include training on the 

vulnerabilities of young people, particularly 

of those in care or on the edge of care. 

 

                                            
2
 This recommendation is aimed at local CAMHS 

commissioners and providers, local authorities, and 
the voluntary sector. 
3
 Our report found that providers who told us they use 

a single point of entry system on average receive 
more referrals and have shorter waiting times, 
compared with those who use a multiple point 
system. 

Providers of CAMHS should collect 

information on referrals from social service; 

police and other agencies with safeguarding 

responsibilities on the numbers referred, 

accepted, not accepted and referred 

somewhere else. This data should inform 

commissioning of services and be shared 

with their Local Safeguarding Children’s 

Boards.  

 

All mental health services should have 

policies in place on transitions for young 

people, including those from vulnerable 

groups. Policies on transitions should 

outline how CAMHS will work with other 

agencies in planning transition.  

 

Commissioners of mental health services 

should consider ways to decrease Did Not 

Attend rates, for example by offering flexible 

booking of appointments and giving older 

adolescents and young people the option to 

choose a suitable appointment time and 

location.  

 

Clinical Commissioning Groups should 

develop mechanisms to enable children and 

young people to participate in 

commissioning and designing mental health 

services, including access routes, to 

improve their responsiveness and ensure 

they meet the specific needs of vulnerable 

groups. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 
 

13 
 

Recommendations for CAMHS 

providers  

Providers of CAMHS should have policies 

in place on Did Not Attends that specify the 

need to follow up when a young person 

misses their appointment, including the 

undertaking of risk assessments. Services 

should specify how they are going to liaise 

with other agencies in cases of young 

people from vulnerable groups. 

 

Voluntary sector organisations supporting 

vulnerable young people should be able to 

make referrals into CAMHS. 

 

Young people should be offered consistent 

advocacy and support to enable them to 

access CAMHS when they are needed. .  

 

 

Recommendations for Health and 

Wellbeing Boards 

Recommendations for Local 

Authorities 

Local authorities and CAMHS services 

should have mechanisms in place to 

identify vulnerable young people and 

prioritise access if they may be at risk. This 

is particularly important for care leavers and 

victims of trauma as there is a lack of a 

nationally led approach for these groups. 

 

Recommendations for Local 

Safeguarding Children’s Board 

Local Safeguarding Children’s Boards 

(LSCBs) should review and monitor access 

to mental health support for children who 

have experienced abuse and trauma and 

ensure that appropriate services are 

commissioned locally with policies in place 

for priority access for children who need it. 

 

 

Recommendations for Local 

HealthWatch

Health and Wellbeing Boards should ensure 

local Joint Strategic Needs Assessments 

explicitly include children and young 

people’s mental health and the needs of 

different vulnerable groups at risk of 

developing mental health problems, to 

assess current and future need and to 

inform commissioning strategies. 

Local HealthWatches should actively 
identify and pursue opportunities to enable 
children and young people to participate in 
commissioning and designing mental health 
services, including access routes, to 
improve engagement and to ensure they 
meet the specific needs of vulnerable 
groups. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



 
 

14 
 

About The Children’s Society  

The Children’s Society is a national charity that runs local services, helping children and young 

people when they are at their most vulnerable, and have nowhere left to turn. We also 

campaign for changes to laws affecting children and young people, to stop the mistakes of the 

past being repeated in the future. Our supporters around the country fund our services and join 

our campaigns to show children and young people they are on their side. 

Our direct work with vulnerable groups including disabled children, children in or leaving care, 

refugee, migrant and trafficked children, means that we can place the voices of children at the 

centre of our work. We offer a range of counselling, befriending and emotional support services 

across the country. Some of these services are delivered alongside specialist support to 

children and young people who have experienced domestic violence, neglect and sexual abuse.  

The Children’s Society has recently developed innovative new early help and prevention 

services for children and young people who are experiencing mental health problems. If 

commissioners would like to hear more about these new approaches please contact Rob 

Willoughby, The Children’s Society’s Practice Lead for Mental Health, on 

Rob.Willoughby@childrenssociety.org.uk.   

Our local well-being consultations 

Our well-being consultations are designed to provide an assessment of well-being amongst 

children and young people. The process helps identify the factors that create risk and 

vulnerability at a local level. This assessment enables commissioning bodies to better target 

their resources and interventions to support young people at risk. 

Our well-being survey establishes children’s sense of well-being. So far around 50,000 children 

have participated in the research. The national results are published in annual Good Childhood 

Reports that outline the overall well-being of children aged 8-16, and help us promote policy and 

practice developments that will support children in experiencing improved well-being. 

If you would like to discuss a local well-being consultation in your area, please contact Larissa 

Pople, Senior Researcher, on Larissa.Pople@childrenssociety.org.uk.  

For further information about our work, please visit here: 

http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/mental-health  

 

 
                                            

i Health Committee. Children’s and adolescents’ mental health and CAMHS, Third Report of Session 2014–15. 2014. Page 3. 

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201415/cmselect/cmhealth/342/342.pdf (Last Accessed 2 October 2015). 

ii The name has been changed to preserve the anonymity of the young person. 

iii The Children’s Society. 2015. Seriously Awkward: Full report. http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-

publications/seriously-awkward-how-vulnerable-16-and-17-year-olds-are
  

For more information about this briefing or our “Access Denied” report, 
please contact Tom Redfearn, Senior Public Affairs Officer on 

Thomas.Redfearn@childrenssociety.org.uk or Kadra Abdinasir, Policy Officer 
on Kadra.Abdinasir@childrenssity.org.uk 

Page 49

mailto:Rob.Willoughby@childrenssociety.org.uk
mailto:Larissa.Pople@childrenssociety.org.uk
http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/mental-health
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201415/cmselect/cmhealth/342/342.pdf
http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/seriously-awkward-how-vulnerable-16-and-17-year-olds-are
http://www.childrenssociety.org.uk/what-we-do/resources-and-publications/seriously-awkward-how-vulnerable-16-and-17-year-olds-are
mailto:Thomas.Redfearn@childrenssociety.org.uk
mailto:Kadra.Abdinasir@childrenssity.org.uk


The Children’s Society is a national charity that runs
local projects and campaigns for change, helping

children and young people when they are at their most
vulnerable and have nowhere else to turn.

We work with some of the most vulnerable teenagers, facing
issues like child sexual exploitation, family neglect, domestic

abuse or mental health problems.

Help us change the law to protect 16–17 year olds from
harm, abuse and neglect:

childrenssociety.org.uk

Further information

For more information on this report, or to
sign up to receive regular updates, email
Thomas Redfearn
Thomas.Redfearn@childrenssociety.org.uk

Charity Registration No. 221124

INS00143/0316

Page 50



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

BARNSLEY CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN 2016 – 2019
PROGRESS MONITORING TO ACHIEVE STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

OBJECTIVE:  KEEPING CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SAFE
Key Ambitions to progress change:
 The Ofsted Improvement Notice that was previously in place has been lifted, and the Ofsted Improvement Plan has been replaced by a Continuous Service 

Improvement Plan through which the Safeguarding Children Board maintains oversight of, and carries forward, actions to ensure the continued improvement of 
services to, and outcomes for, children, young people and families in Barnsley

 Ensure all Board members are up to date with changes in policy, guidance and practice to enable them to provide strategic direction and scrutiny of core safeguarding 
and child protection processes and data, and provide effective challenge.

 Develop and improve performance management and quality assurance systems to ensure robust and continuous service improvement, supported by workforce 
development programmes to secure safe practice.

 Ensure that the Board maintains a comprehensive overview of the work of partner agencies involved with safeguarding children, including the Voluntary Community 
Sector (VCS)

 The Board receives assurance that the Sub-Groups reflect and provide for the requirements of Working Together guidance
 To ensure the implementation of the actions contained in the Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy.
 There is a commitment to establish a Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) that will see staff from a number of organisations working together in the same 

premises. This will improve working practices and communication to the benefit of children and young people.

TEG Champions: Bob Dyson, Independent Chair of the Safeguarding Children Board and 
Mel John-Ross, BMBC Service Director of  Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG

Through the results of Quality Audits evidencing an improvement in working 
practices.
Key performance indicators evidencing an improvement.

Implementing the new Early Help Service in April 2016.

Establishing the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH)

P
age 51

Item
 11



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:   IMPROVING EDUCATION, ACHIEVEMENT AND EMPLOYABILITY
Key ambitions to progress change:
 Close the attainment gap in  Early Years outcomes between Barnsley and National averages
 Improve school attendance so that it reflects at least national averages
 Support all children and young people, including the most vulnerable groups, to achieve their highest potential, narrowing the gap between national and local 

performance
 Promote good transition through education and encourage young people to access further/ higher education
 Improve the quality of teaching and learning 
 Improve leadership capacity in schools at all levels
 Further improve emotional health, resilience and behaviour of young people so that it does not hinder achievement
 Robustly utilise the Barnsley Alliance Support, Challenge and Intervention policy to improve outcomes for young people and improve the number of good and 

outstanding schools
 Through The Barnsley Alliance, further develop sector led improvements, brokered and commissioned support for schools and quality assure support and intervention
 Develop comprehensive learning pathways for young people 14-19 (25 for pupils with SEND)
 Develop a range of alternative provision in collaboration with local providers and local businesses
 Work with the business community and training providers to increase opportunities for all young people within the workplace including providing and promoting the take 

up of a range of apprenticeships.
 Promote lifelong learning to increase skills and aspirations to achieve success, wellbeing and economic stability

TEG Champion: Margaret Libreri, BMBC Service Director, Education, Early Start and Prevention

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Increase in the number of good and outstanding schools in Ofsted Inspection 
outcomes
Increase in the proportion of schools’ Ofsted grades reflecting good and 
outstanding teaching and pupil learning
Increase in the proportion of schools’ Ofsted grades reflecting good and 
outstanding leadership, including governance
Pupil progress outcomes at all key stages will be at least in line with national 
levels
Barnsley Alliance sector led improvements will evidence positive impact

No Improvement Reviews will be required

No schools identified as RED in the Alliance School Support Plan and an 
increased number of schools identified as GREEN
A menu of alternative provision pathways for young people will be published in a 
prospectus and pathways will be well utilised
Reduced number of permanent exclusions for all young people including the most 
vulnerable

P
age 52



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

Reduced number of fixed term exclusions for all young people including the most 
vulnerable
Reduced incidents of persistent absence for all young people including the most 
vulnerable
Evidence that Agencies are working together to deliver effective Early Help to 
address the health and well-being needs of young people and their families
The number of pupils who remain in the Pupil Referral Unit in the long term will be 
reduced
The number of pupils referred to Fair Access Panel will be reduced

P
age 53



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:   TACKLING CHILD POVERTY AND IMPROVING FAMILY LIFE
Key ambitions to progress change:
 ‘Make Poverty Everyone's Business' and place core Anti-Poverty themes at the centre of family support and intervention work i.e., employment, independence and 

protection
 Support the Anti-Poverty Delivery Group to implement action plan
 Reduce child poverty to help Barnsley parents give their children the best start in life. This is a key aim within the Barnsley Anti-Poverty Delivery Plan
 Improve access to welfare advice and associated support services 
 Development of a second Community Shop in Athersley
 Improve access to affordable  credit

TEG Champions: Wendy Lowder, BMBC Interim Executive Director, Stronger, Safer and Healthier Communities, and
Jayne Hellowell, BMBC Head of Locality Commissioning and Healthier Communities

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Key Performance Indictors (KPIs) monitored through the Stronger Communities 
Partnership and Anti-Poverty Delivery Group show an improved trend
Stories collected from families show improved impact

P
age 54



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:   SUPPORTING ALL CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILIES TO MAKE HEALTHY LIFESTYLE CHOICES
Key ambitions to progress change:
 Ensure the 0-19’s integrated public health service for children and young people will make a major contribution to the development of self-esteem; positive 

relationships; and healthy behaviour and lifestyle choices. 
 A targeted approach to improving the oral health of children. 
 Reduce childhood obesity starting with a focus on the areas of highest prevalence.
 Create a smoke-free generation with a particular focus on reducing smoking in pregnancy. 
 Ensure sexual health services, including contraceptive services, are accessible, personalised and effective, and reduce under-18 conceptions. 
 Ensure physical activity opportunities and healthy eating are embedded in school based programmes
 Work with early years services to ensure children are ready for school and opportunities are identified to tackle the causes of child poverty.

TEG Champion: Carrie Abbott, BMBC Service Director of Public Health

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Improved health outcomes for children and young people

Improved breastfeeding rates

Increased number of children who have a healthy weight

Reduced smoking in pregnancy rates 

Demonstrable improvement in smoke free generation (Breathe 2025 Campaign)

Reduced under-18 conceptions

Improved oral health of children

Increased levels of activity

Improved school readiness 

P
age 55



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:  ENCOURAGING POSITIVE RELATIONSHIPS AND STRENGTEHNING EMOTIONAL HEALTH
Key ambitions to progress change:
 Strengthen the pace and focus on improvements in access and waiting times to Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) to provide a timely and 

effective response.  CAMHS has committed to reducing the waiting time for the initial (Choice) appointment to 5 weeks by the end of March 2016.
 Improve the crisis care of children and young people (as highlighted in the Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat).  Additional funding (via the Local Transformation 

Plan) has been made available and will be utilised to enhance the operation of an SPA within CAMHS and will also enable priority access to CAMHS for C&YP via the 
YOT and LAC

 Strengthen and maintain the capacity of the workforce within universal services to promote emotional health and wellbeing and to support all children, young people 
and their families to respond appropriately.  Barnsley’s Local Transformation Plan focuses on the development of a ‘Resilience’ model of delivery within schools to meet 
the emotional health and wellbeing needs of children and young people. The initial focus will be developing resilience of primary school children. Barnsley’s Local 
Transformation Plan supports the development of a school-based Mental Health Therapeutic Service to be accessible by all schools in the borough, initially focusing on 
secondary schools 

 Ensure that children and young people have the opportunity to influence and shape development of the strategy that supports services required to promote emotional 
resilience.

 To conclude the commissioning review of domestic violence.

TEG Champion: Brigid Reid, NHS Barnsley (NHSB) Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Chief Nurse

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Sustained reduced waiting times for choice appointments to less than 5 weeks 

Evidence that schools are sharing examples of how early signs of emotional 
distress are effectively managed and how wellbeing is promoted

Evidence that School Nurses are being used effectively to ensure universal 
services are fully deployed to prevent the need for specialist intervention, and 
when the latter is required to ensure effective referrals are made and utilised 
(reduction in DNAs)

P
age 56



CORE PURPOSE: TO WORK TOGETHER TO IMPROVE CHILDREN’S OUTCOMES

OBJECTIVE:  IMPROVING STAFF SKILLS TO DELIVER QUALITY SERVICES
Key ambitions to progress change:
 Establish common core skills, attitudes and behaviours for the children’s workforce to deliver safe practice and improved experience and outcomes for children, young 

people and families, including: being professionally curious; being able to identify needs as early as possible across the spectrum of outcomes; being able to offer the 
right service at the right time; consider the needs of the whole family; be tenacious and provide respectful challenge when necessary; strive for continuous 
improvement; demonstrate improved performance.

 Good leadership and management skills to ensure that the workforce is appropriately skilled and working towards continuous improvement.
 A workforce with an understanding of multi-agency working.
 Satisfied service users.
 Joined up Workforce Development Group

TEG Champion: Amanda Glew, BMBC Organisation Development Manager

OUTCOMES PROGRESS RAG
Good feedback from service users

Percentage of Managers who have undertaken the leadership development 
programme

Percentage of the workforce who have up-to-date Professional Development 
Reviews or equivalent

Evidence of improved multi-agency working

Evidence of a confident and skilled workforce

Evidence of appropriately targeted services being delivered at the right time

Evidence of reduced pressure on front line social care services 

Evidence of a resilient, sustainable and stable workforce

Workforce has a shared understanding of the vision

Evidence from Section 11 audit challenge

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TEG Work Programme 2016-17
Agenda Items Action Dates of future TEG meetings during 2016/17 Responsible person/

organisation
Frequency Source

17-Jun 04-Aug 06-Oct 24-Nov 20-Jan 03-Mar 27-Apr 08-Jun 20-Jul
1 Standing agenda items:

1.1 Barnsley Safeguarding Children's Board (BSCB) minutes Provide minutes/ a verbal update ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü Bob Dyson Every meeting

1.2 Terms of Reference/ Partnership Agreement Revision Review annually ü Richard Lynch Annually (Sept/Oct) ToR/ Accountability and Governance

1.3 Continuous Service Improvement Framework & Plan Receive updates on progress ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü Julie Govan Every meeting (e-mail from Julie Govan 24.11.2014)

1.4 Children's Workforce Development TEG agreed to support the approved
implementation plan by continued
commitment to partnership working via the
Trust Workforce Development Group, to
consider at a future meeting a stronger
assurance/ evaluation framework; and to
receive regular updates on progress.

ü ü ü ü ü

Amanda Glew Regularly TEG 17 Jan 2014 (item 12)

1.5 CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes performance highlights/ risks Identify issues for escalation ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü Theme leads/ all members Every meeting TEG 7 Nov 2014

1.6 TEG Work Programme review Highlight additions and for the coming
items ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü ü Richard Lynch Every meeting

2 Children and Young People's Plan strategic priority themes: Sub-group leads to report on
performance measures to monitor/
challenge; provide updates into TEG;
highlight where there are problems
with performance

2.1 Tackling child poverty and improving family life Sub-group report and performance
highlights

ü Wendy Lowder Annually

2.1.1 Parenting   (family support/child poverty)   Action focused discussion
ü

Andrea Hoyland/
Jayne Hellowell

2.1.2 Think Family Update to be given 
ü ü

Paul Hussey/
Margaret Libreri

TEG 29.4.16 (item 13)

2.2 Improving staff skills to deliver quality services Sub-group report and performance
highlights

ü Amanda Glew Annually

2.2.1 Workforce Development/ skills Action focused discussion ü Amanda Glew Regular updates

2.3 Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional health Sub-group report and performance
highlights

ü Brigid Reid Annually

2.3.1 Behaviour support and emotional wellbeing Action focused discussion ü Brigid Reid

2.3.2 Access to therapeutic support and waiting times Action focused discussion ü Brigid Reid

2.4 Keeping children and young people safe Sub-group report and performance
highlights

ü ü Bob Dyson/ Mel John-Ross Annually

2.4.1 Early support pathway for children with additional/complex needs Further amendments to be made to the
early support pathway as agreed. A report
to be received in 6 months to consider the
effectiveness of the pathway.

ü ü

John Rooke/ Anita McCrum Agreed at TEG 18.12.2015, item 7

2.4.2 Early Help: update on progress in April.  A celebration event to be organised in August Early Help Steering Group asked to collect
examples of early help in action etc.
Update requested for April 2016 and
deferred to August meeting.

ü
Margaret Libreri TEG 5.2.2016 (item 7); 29.4.2016 (item 6)

2.4.3 Contacts into Social Care and the 'front door' Action focused discussion ü ü Mel John-Ross

2.5 Improving education, achievement and employability Sub-group report and performance
highlights ü Margaret Libreri Annually

2.5.1 Disabled Children's Charter progress report. 6 month update on progress  ü Mel John Ross Twice a year

2.5.2 Local Area Special Educational Needs Ofsted Inspection. Ensure inspection Readyness ü Margaret Libreri ECG 11.1.2016 (item 8)

2.5.3 Mediation and conflict resolution service. Update to be given 
ü

Margaret Libreri ECG 11.1.2016 (item 6)

2.5.4 School exclusions. An update to be brought to TEG in the next
term to further discuss issues raised. ü

Margaret Libreri/
Dave Whitaker

TEG 17 March 2016

2.5.5 SEND Reforms. SEND Strategy and Action Plan ü Margaret Libreri

2.5.6 Case study on the impact of non attendance and the services involved. Report on impact of Non Attendence  
ü Keren Harben

2.5.7 Inclusion and vulnerable groups  Action focused discussion ü Matt Orr 

2.5.8 Barnsley Alliance Board report and action plan. Action focused discussion ü Margaret Libreri

2.5.9 Careers advice and guidance. Action focused discussion ü Margaret Libreri

2.6 Supporting children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices Sub-group report and performance
highlights ü

Public Health/
Julia Burrows

Annually

2.6.1 Paediatric services - update on review Update and review ü Richard Lynch/ CCG

2.6.2 Healthy Weight/ Childhood obesity Healthy Child Programme ambition ü Public Health, Rebecca Clark TEG 17 March 2016

2.6.3 Breastfeeding Healthy Child Programme ambition ü ü Diane Lee, Public Health / Kay
Bennett, BMBC & Helen Mills,
SWYPFT

TEG 17 March 2016

2.6.4 Reducing Teenage Pregnancies Action focused discussion - Healthy Child
Programme ambition.  Updates. ü ü ü Diane Lee, Public Health &

Emma Pye, SWYPFT
TEG 17 June 2016 (item 5.2) 

P
age 59

Item
 14



2.6.5 Public Health Strategy/ implementation plan This needs to go via H&WB Board and SMT
before TEG - scheduled for March meeting. ü Public Health, Rebecca Clark e-mails from Anne Firth 1.10.2015 &

9.11.2015

2.6.6 Smoking in Young People. Public Health strategic priority 1 ü Public Health, Diane Lee/Kaye
Mann

TEG 17 March 2016

2.6.7 Oral health  Public Health strategic priority 2 ü Public Health, Anita Dobson TEG 17 March 2016

2.6.8 Physical activity Public Health strategic priority 3 ü Place/ Public Health, Julie
Tolhurst

2.6.9 Healthy Start/ 0-19 CYP Health and Wellbeing ü Public Health, Carrie Abbott TEG 17 March 2016

3 Agenda Items:

3.1 Stronger Communities Partnership Action Plan A SCP Action Plan to be submitted to future
TEG and BSCB meeting ü Wendy Lowder Agreed at TEG 6.11.2015, item 9(ii)

3.2 Troubled Families Update ü Andrea Hoyland/
Jayne Hellowell

Requested via e-mail (23.6.2016)

3.3 Looked After Children Sufficiency Strategy/ Foster Carer Placements Action focused discussion regarding how to
collectively secure more foster carers in
Barnsley. 

ü Richard Lynch Executive Commissioning Group 23 May
2016, item 5.

4. Updates on progress
4.1 Progress on outcomes of Children and Young People's Plan Report on progress against outcomes 

ü ü
Julie Green Quarterly

4.2 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Action focused discussion ü Liz Pitt

4.3 Information sharing Action focused discussion ü Luke Sayers 

4.4 Progress update from Parent and Carers Forum Report on progress  
ü Parent Carers Forum Annually Agreed at TEG 29 April 2016, item 5

(last bullet)

P
age 60



  

Refreshments 09.10

1. Welcome and introductions
(Rachel Dickinson and Bob Dyson)

09.30
(10 min)

2. One year on - what children and young people tell us
Sound-bytes from young people about the impact of the Children and 
Young People’s Plan

09.40
(5 min)

3. Continuous Service Improvement Plan Review 
An assessment by the Officer Group of where we are in terms of the 
framework two years after the inspection
(Julie Govan) 

09.45
(30 min)

4. Accountability and Governance 10.15

4.1 Consideration of the role of both Boards in light of the Wood Report -
Introduction from Bob Dyson and Rachel Dickinson before a workshop 
style group exercise

(40 min)

4.2 Toxic Trio Event held on 13 November 2016 - feedback 
(Bob Dyson/ Nigel Leeder)

10.55
(10 min)

4.3 Key actions from Safeguarding Awareness Week
(Monica Green/ Nigel Leeder)

11.05
(10 min)

Tea/ coffee break 11.15
(15 min)

5. Neglect Strategy – consideration of other local authority models
(Debbie Mercer)

11.30
(30 min)

6. Joint Risks and Opportunities Register
(Adrian Hunt)

12.00
(10 min)

7. Summing up and agreed actions/ closing remarks 12.10

Barnsley Children, Young People and Families Trust and
Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board event

18 November 2016, 9.30 to 12.30
The Core, Voluntary Action Barnsley

PROGRAMME

Page 61

Item 15

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/526329/Alan_Wood_review.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting Held on 17 June 2016
	3.1 Matters Arising/Action Log
	4. Parenting ( family support/child poverty)
	7. Healthy Weight/ Childhood Obesity
	8. Sport and Active Lifestyle Action Plan 2016 - 2018
	10. Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) referral pathways in Barnsley
	11. Progress on the process for monitoring the outcomes of the Children and Young People's Plan
	14. TEG Work Programme Review
	15. Joint TEG/BSCB Meeting

